Public Document Pack
SOUTHEND-ON-SEA CITY COUNCIL

Licensing Sub-Committee B
Date: Monday, 19th June, 2023
Time: 10.00 am
Place: Committee Room 1 - Civic Suite
Contact: Tim Row - Principal Committee Officer

Email: committeesection@southend.gov.uk

AGENDA

1 Apologies for Absence
2 Declarations of Interest

3 58 The Ridgeway, Westcliff-on-Sea, Essex, SS0 8NU - Application for
Review of Premises Licence (Pages 3 - 56)

TO: The Chair & Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee B:
Councillor A Dear (Chair)
Councillors A Jones and C Mulroney

PLEASE NOTE: Members of the Sub Committee should assemble in the Councillors’ Area
at least 15 minutes before the hearing commences. The Clerk to the Sub Committee will
inform you when all the parties to the hearing are ready to proceed.



This page is intentionally left blank



Southend-on-Sea Agenda
A‘sss City Council Item No.

Meeting: Licensing Sub Committee B 3
Date: 19 June 2023

Classification: Part 1

Key Decision: No

Title of Report: 58 The Ridgeway, Westcliff-on-Sea, Essex, SS0 8NU -

Application for Review of Premises Licence

Executive Director: Neighbourhoods & Environment
Report Author: Mark Newton

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 This report considers an application by the Home Office, Immigration
Enforcement for the review of the existing Premises Licence.

2. Recommendation
2.1 That the Sub-Committee determines the application.
3. Background

3.1 The application relates to premises located in The Ridgeway, Westcliff-on-Sea,
along a stretch of mixed commercial and residential properties.

4. The Review Application

4.1 The application for review was made by the Home Office, Immigration
Enforcement and was received on 26th April 2023.

4.2  The grounds for the application is that the premises is undermining the licensing
objective, the prevention of crime and disorder.

4.3  Full details are provided within the application form, which has been copied to
Sub-Committee Members.

5. Application Procedure

5.1  Applicants for review of licences are required by law to send copies of their
applications to all of the responsible authorities and to the premises licence
holder.

5.2 The Licensing Authority is required to advertise the review by displaying
prominently a notice at, on or near the site of the premises to which the
application relates, for a period of 28 days. Such a notice is also required to be



5.3

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

displayed at the offices, or main offices, of the Licensing Authority, in a central
and conspicuous place. These notices have been displayed, and have been
checked frequently.

Copies of the initial application, and supporting evidence, have been provided
to the Sub Committee Members. In accordance with the legislation, all parties
have been invited to attend the hearing.

Matter for Consideration

A valid application for review having been made, the Licensing Authority is
obliged to hold a hearing to consider it and any relevant representations.

The Authority must, having regard to the application and relevant
representations, take such steps (if any) as it considers necessary for the
promotion of the licensing objectives.

The steps are:-

a) to modify the conditions of the licence;

b) to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence;
c) to remove the designated premises supervisor;

d) to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding 3 months;
e) to revoke the licence.

For this purpose, the conditions of the licence are modified under paragraph a)
above if any of them is altered or omitted, or any new condition is added.

Where the Licensing Authority modifies the conditions of the licence, or
excludes a licensable activity, it may provide that the modification or exclusion
is to have effect only for such period (not exceeding 3 months) as it may specify.

The Licensing Act 2003 requires that the Licensing Authority must carry out its
functions under the Act with a view to promoting the licensing objectives. These
are:-

a) the prevention of crime and disorder;
b) public safety;

c) the prevention of public nuisance;

d) the protection of children from harm.

In carrying out its licensing functions, the Licensing Authority must also have
regard to:

i) Its Licensing Statement, and
ii) The guidance issued by the Secretary of State.

The Licensing Authority has, in accordance with the requirements of the Act,
prepared and published a Statement of Licensing Policy, following formal
consultation. Copies of this document, together with the Statutory Guidance
has been made available to all Licensing Committee Members.



6.9

7.1

7.2

8.1

9.1

Where the Licensing Authority makes a determination in respect of a review,
the determination does not have effect:-

a) until the end of the period given for appealing against the decision, or
b) if the decision is appealed against, until the appeal is disposed of.

Existing Licensing Controls

The premises have the benefit of a Premises Licence, which permits the
following licensable activities:

a) The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption on the premises only.

Mondays to Sundays 11:00 - 23:00

New Years Eve 11:00 - 01:00

b) Provision of regulated entertainment comprising recorded music.
Monday to Sunday 09.00 - 23.00

On New Years Eve 09.00 - 01.00

A copy of the current licence has been provided to the sub-committee
Background Papers

Council's Statement of Licensing Policy.

Appendices

Appendix 1 - Extract from statutory guidance






APPENDIX 1

EXTRACT FROM STATUTORY GUIDANCE ISSUED BY THE HOME OFFICE
UNDER SECTION 182 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003

(NB Numbers within Appendix 1 are references from the guidance, dated December
2022)

11. Reviews
The review process

11.1  The proceedings set out in the 2003 Act for reviewing premises licences and
club premises certificates represent a key protection for the community where
problems associated with the licensing objectives occur after the grant or variation of
a premises licence or club premises certificate.

11.2 At any stage, following the grant of a premises licence or club premises
certificate, a responsible authority, or any other person, may ask the licensing authority
to review the licence or certificate because of a matter arising at the premises in
connection with any of the four licensing objectives.

11.3 An application for review may be made electronically, provided that the
licensing authority agrees and the applicant submits a subsequent hard copy of the
application, if the licensing authority requires one. The licensing authority may also
agree in advance that the application need not be given in hard copy. However, these
applications are outside the formal electronic application process and may not be
submitted via GOV.UK or the licensing authority’s electronic facility. The applicant
must give notice of the review application to the responsible authorities and holder of
the licence or certificate. The licensing authority is required to advertise a review
application.

11.4 In addition, the licensing authority must review a licence if the premises to which
it relates was made the subject of a closure order by the police based on nuisance or
disorder and the magistrates’ court has sent the authority the relevant notice of its
determination, or if the police have made an application for summary review on the
basis that premises are associated with serious crime and/or disorder.

11.5 Any responsible authority under the 2003 Act may apply for a review of a
premises licence or club premises certificate. Therefore, the relevant licensing
authority may apply for a review if it is concerned about licensed activities at premises
and wants to intervene early without waiting for representations from other persons.
However, it is not expected that licensing authorities should normally act as
responsible authorities in applying for reviews on behalf of other persons, such as local
residents or community groups. These individuals or groups are entitled to apply for a
review for a licence or certificate in their own right if they have grounds to do so. It is
also reasonable for licensing authorities to expect other responsible authorities to
intervene where the basis for the intervention falls within the remit of that other
authority. For example, the police should take appropriate steps where the basis for
the review is concern about crime and disorder or the sexual exploitation of children.
Likewise, where there are concerns about noise nuisance, it is reasonable to expect



the local authority exercising environmental health functions for the area in which the
premises are situated to make the application for review.

11.6  Where the relevant licensing authority does act as a responsible authority and
applies for a review, it is important that a separation of responsibilities is still achieved
in this process to ensure procedural fairness and eliminate conflicts of interest. As
outlined previously in Chapter 9 of this Guidance, the distinct functions of acting as
licensing authority and responsible authority should be exercised by different officials
to ensure a separation of responsibilities. Further information on how licensing
authorities should achieve this separation of responsibilities can be found in Chapter
9, paragraphs 9.13 to 9.19 of this Guidance.

11.7 In every case, any application for a review must relate to particular premises in
respect of which there is a premises licence or club premises certificate and must be
relevant to the promotion of one or more of the licensing objectives. Following the
grant or variation of a licence or certificate, a complaint regarding a general issue in
the local area relating to the licensing objectives, such as a general (crime and
disorder) situation in a town centre, should generally not be regarded as relevant
unless it can be positively tied or linked by a causal connection to particular premises,
which would allow for a proper review of the licence or certificate. For instance, a
geographic cluster of complaints, including along transport routes related to an
individual public house and its closing time, could give grounds for a review of an
existing licence as well as direct incidents of crime and disorder around a particular
public house.

11.8 Where a licensing authority receives a geographic cluster of complaints,
consideration may be given as whether these issues are the result of the cumulative
impact of licensed premises within the area concerned. In such circumstances, the
licensing authority may be asked to consider whether it would be appropriate to publish
a cumulative impact assessment. Further guidance on cumulative impact
assessments can be found in Chapter 14 of this Guidance.

11.9 Responsible authorities and other persons may make representations in
respect of an application to review a premises licence or club premises certificate.
They must be relevant (i.e., relate to one or more of the licensing objectives) and, in
the case of other persons, must not be frivolous or vexatious. Representations must
be made in writing and may be amplified at the subsequent hearing or may stand in
their own right. Additional representations which do not amount to an amplification of
the original representation may not be made at the hearing. Representations may be
made electronically, provided the licensing authority agrees and the applicant submits
a subsequent hard copy, unless the licensing authority waives this requirement.

11.10 Where authorised persons and responsible authorities have concerns about
problems identified at premises, it is good practice for them to give licence holders
early warning of their concerns and the need for improvement, and where possible
they should advise the licence or certificate holder of the steps they need to take to
address those concerns. A failure by the holder to respond to such warnings is
expected to lead to a decision to apply for a review. Co-operation at a local level in
promoting the licensing objectives should be encouraged and reviews should not be
used to undermine this co-operation.



11.11 If the application for a review has been made by a person other than a
responsible authority (for example, a local resident, residents’ association, local
business or trade association), before taking action the licensing authority must first
consider whether the complaint being made is relevant, frivolous, vexatious or
repetitious. Further guidance on determining whether a representation is frivolous or
vexatious can be found in Chapter 9 of this Guidance (paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10).

Repetitious grounds of review
11.12 A repetitious ground is one that is identical or substantially similar to:

» a ground for review specified in an earlier application for review made in
relation to the same premises licence or certificate which has already been
determined; or

* representations considered by the licensing authority when the premises
licence or certificate was granted; or

* representations which would have been made when the application for the
premises licence was first made and which were excluded then by reason of
the prior issue of a provisional statement; and, in addition to the above grounds,
a reasonable interval has not elapsed since that earlier review or grant.

11.13 Licensing authorities are expected to be aware of the need to prevent attempts
to review licences merely as a further means of challenging the grant of the licence
following the failure of representations to persuade the licensing authority on an earlier
occasion. It is for licensing authorities themselves to judge what should be regarded
as a reasonable interval in these circumstances. However, it is recommended that
more than one review originating from a person other than a responsible authority in
relation to a particular premises should not be permitted within a 12 month period on
similar grounds save in compelling circumstances or where it arises following a closure
order or illegal working compliance order.

11.14 The exclusion of a complaint on the grounds that it is repetitious does not apply
to responsible authorities which may make more than one application for a review of
a licence or certificate within a 12 month period.

11.15 When a licensing authority receives an application for a review from a
responsible authority or any other person, or in accordance with the closure
procedures described in Part 8 of the 2003 Act (for example, closure orders), it must
arrange a hearing. The arrangements for the hearing must follow the provisions set
out in regulations. These regulations are published on the Government’s legislation
website (www.legislation.gov.uk). It is particularly important that the premises licence
holder is made fully aware of any representations made in respect of the premises,
any evidence supporting the representations and that the holder or the holder’s legal
representative has therefore been able to prepare a response.

Powers of a licensing authority on the determination of a review
11.16 The 2003 Act provides a range of powers for the licensing authority which it

may exercise on determining a review where it considers them appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives.



11.17 The licensing authority may decide that the review does not require it to take
any further steps appropriate to promoting the licensing objectives. In addition, there
is nothing to prevent a licensing authority issuing an informal warning to the licence
holder and/or to recommend improvement within a particular period of time. It is
expected that licensing authorities will regard such informal warnings as an important
mechanism for ensuring that the licensing objectives are effectively promoted and that
warnings should be issued in writing to the licence holder.

11.18 However, where responsible authorities such as the police or environmental
health officers have already issued warnings requiring improvement — either orally or
in writing — that have failed as part of their own stepped approach to address concerns,
licensing authorities should not merely repeat that approach and should take this into
account when considering what further action is appropriate. Similarly, licensing
authorities may take into account any civil immigration penalties which a licence holder
has been required to pay for employing an illegal worker.

11.19 Where the licensing authority considers that action under its statutory powers
is appropriate, it may take any of the following steps:

* modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new
conditions or any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for example,
by reducing the hours of opening or by requiring door supervisors at particular
times;

 exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for example, to
exclude the performance of live music or playing of recorded music (where it is
not within the incidental live and recorded music exemption). See chapter 16 in
relation to the licensing of live and recorded music.

» remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because they
consider that the problems are the result of poor management;

* suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;

* revoke the licence.

11.20 In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that licensing
authorities should so far as possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the
concerns that the representations identify. The remedial action taken should generally
be directed at these causes and should always be no more than an appropriate and
proportionate response to address the causes of concern that instigated the review.

11.21 For example, licensing authorities should be alive to the possibility that the
removal and replacement of the designated premises supervisor may be sufficient to
remedy a problem where the cause of the identified problem directly relates to poor
management decisions made by that individual.

11.22 Equally, it may emerge that poor management is a direct reflection of poor
company practice or policy and the mere removal of the designated premises
supervisor may be an inadequate response to the problems presented. Indeed, where
subsequent review hearings are generated, it should be rare merely to remove a
succession of designated premises supervisors as this would be a clear indication of
deeper problems that impact upon the licensing objectives.

10



11.23 Licensing authorities should also note that modifications of conditions and
exclusions of licensable activities may be imposed either permanently or for a
temporary period of up to three months. Temporary changes or suspension of the
licence for up to three months could impact on the business holding the licence
financially and would only be expected to be pursued as an appropriate means of
promoting the licensing objectives or preventing illegal working. So, for instance, a
licence could be suspended for a weekend as a means of deterring the holder from
allowing the problems that gave rise to the review to happen again. However, it will
always be important that any detrimental financial impact that may result from a
licensing authority’s decision is appropriate and proportionate to the promotion of the
licensing objectives and for the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. But
where premises are found to be trading irresponsibly, the licensing authority should
not hesitate, where appropriate to do so, to take tough action to tackle the problems
at the premises and, where other measures are deemed insufficient, to revoke the
licence.

Reviews arising in connection with crime

11.24 A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not directly
connected with licensable activities. For example, reviews may arise because of drugs
problems at the premises, money laundering by criminal gangs, the sale of contraband
or stolen goods, the sale of firearms, or the sexual exploitation of children. Licensing
authorities do not have the power to judge the criminality or otherwise of any issue.
This is a matter for the courts. The licensing authority’s role when determining such a
review is not therefore to establish the guilt orinnocence of any individual but to ensure
the promotion of the crime prevention objective.

11.25 Reviews are part of the regulatory process introduced by the 2003 Act and they
are not part of criminal law and procedure. There is, therefore, no reason why
representations giving rise to a review of a premises licence need be delayed pending
the outcome of any criminal proceedings. Some reviews will arise after the conviction
in the criminal courts of certain individuals, but not all. In any case, it is for the licensing
authority to determine whether the problems associated with the alleged crimes are
taking place on the premises and affecting the promotion of the licensing objectives.
Where a review follows a conviction, it would also not be for the licensing authority to
attempt to go beyond any finding by the courts, which should be treated as a matter
of undisputed evidence before them.

11.26 Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the grounds that the
premises have been used for criminal purposes, its role is solely to determine what
steps should be taken in connection with the premises licence, for the promotion of
the crime prevention objective. It is important to recognise that certain criminal activity
or associated problems may be taking place or have taken place despite the best
efforts of the licence holder and the staff working at the premises and despite full
compliance with the conditions attached to the licence. In such circumstances, the
licensing authority is still empowered to take any appropriate steps to remedy the
problems. The licensing authority’s duty is to take steps with a view to the promotion
of the licensing objectives and the prevention of illegal working in the interests of the
wider community and not those of the individual licence holder.

11



11.27 There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed
premises which should be treated particularly seriously. These are the use of the
licensed premises:

« for the sale and distribution of drugs controlled under the Misuse of Drugs Act
1971 and the laundering of the proceeds of drugs crime;

» for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms;

« for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films and music,
which does considerable damage to the industries affected;

« for the illegal purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors which impacts
on the health, educational attainment, employment prospects and propensity
for crime of young people;

» for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography;

* by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children;

« as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly by gangs;

« for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist attacks;

« for employing a person who is disqualified from that work by reason of their
immigration status in the UK;

» for unlawful gambling; and

« for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol.

11.28 It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the Home Office
(Immigration Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies, which are
responsible authorities, will use the review procedures effectively to deter such
activities and crime. Where reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that
the crime prevention objective is being undermined through the premises being used
to further crimes, it is expected that revocation of the licence — even in the first instance
— should be seriously considered.

Review of a premises licence following closure order or illegal working compliance
order

11.29 Licensing authorities are subject to certain timescales, set out in the legislation,
for the review of a premises licence following a closure order under section 80 of the
Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 or an illegal working compliance
order under section 38 of and Schedule 6 to the Immigration Act 2016. The relevant
time periods run concurrently and are as follows:

» when the licensing authority receives notice that a magistrates’ court has
made a closure order it has 28 days to determine the licence review — the
determination must be made before the expiry of the 28th day after the day on
which the notice is received,

» the hearing must be held within ten working days, the first of which is the day
after the day the notice from the magistrates’ court is received;

* notice of the hearing must be given no later than five working days before the
first hearing day (there must be five clear working days between the giving of
the notice and the start of the hearing).

12



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

13



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

19



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

29



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

33



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

35



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

37



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

39



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

41



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

43



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

51



This page is intentionally left blank



La Piazzetta Restaurant, 58 The Ridgeway, Westcliff-on-Sea

Application for a review of a Premises Licence

]

A\

B




This page is intentionally left blank



qg

La Piazzetta Restaurant, 58 The Ridgeway, Westcliff-on-Sea
Application for a review of a Premises Licence

Lo N
The Drive | &




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 58 The Ridgeway, Westcliff-on-Sea, Essex, SS0 8NU - Application for Review of Premises Licence
	1 - Application for the Review of a Premises Licence
	2 - Licence Review Pack - La Piazzetta
	3 - Illegal_Working-Employee
	4 -Encounter-Complete
	5 - Arrest
	6 - Freetext_Late_entry_illegal_entry-Completed
	7 - Illegal_Working-Employer_Managerowner
	8 - MG11 - La Piazzetta
	9 - 58 The Ridgeway copy licence
	10 - Lic Plan
	11 - 58 The Ridgeway Plan 2
	12 - 58 The Ridgeway Plan 1


